
Televised Live, Government Channel WTRY  (10 WideOpenWest and 17 Comcast) Replayed Wednesdays 3:00 pm, 6:00 pm and 11:00 pm 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Donald Edmunds, Chair, Tom Krent, Vice Chair 
Ollie Apahidean, Karen Crusse, Carlton M. Faison, Michael W. Hutson 

Padma Kuppa, Philip Sanzica and John J. Tagle 

   

September 13, 2016 7:00 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – August 9, 2016 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5.  PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 1005) – Proposed Renovation of 

Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Maple Road (1010 E. Maple), Section 34, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 

 
OTHER ITEMS 

 
  
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City 

Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  
An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2016 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:05 p.m. on August 9, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Ollie Apahidean 
Karen Crusse 
Donald Edmunds 
Carlton M. Faison 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Padma Kuppa 
Philip Sanzica 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-08-053 
Moved by: Krent 
Support by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, To reverse the order of Agenda items #5 and #6 and approve the Agenda 
as revised. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-08-054 
Moved by: Tagle 
Support by: Kuppa 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 26, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2016 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

6. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR JPCR2016-003) – 
Proposed McClure Road Apartments, North of Big Beaver, East of Crooks, East side of 
McClure (3142, 3114, 3086 McClure), Section 20, From R-1B (One Family Resident) 
District to BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the revisions to the proposed application since last discussed at 
the July 12, 2016 meeting and addressed how the Big Beaver Corridor study relates to 
the zoning district. 
 
Present were the applicant Sam Stafa, project architect Peter Stuhlreyer of Designhaus 
Architecture and Attorney Dennis Cowan. 
 
There was discussion on: 

 Height and form of the building. 

 Residential buffer. 

 Traffic study/report. 

 Building materials. 

 Informational meeting with neighbors. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
The following spoke in opposition of the proposed application. In general, the concerns 
relate to safety, incompatibility with surroundings, loss of privacy and cut-through traffic. 

 Sandeep Sovani, 3205 McClure 

 Kirit Patel, 1993 Sachin Way 

 James Williams, 3317 McClure 

 Andrew “Rocky” Raczkowski, 3204 McClure 

 Ravi Gandra, 1961 Sachin Way 

 Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan 

 Keith Howard, 3229 McClure 

 Bassam Salem, 3227 McClure 

 Charles Walker, 3381 McClure 

 Susan Tompkins, 1725 Banmoor 

 Andrea Hernandez-Troya, 3183 McClure 

 Denise Billups Walker, 3381 McClure 

 Ann Bruttell, 3425 McClure 

 Barbara Dawson, 1834 Boulan 

 Azam Makki, 1915 Muer 

 Xing Ping Chen, 3481 McClure 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2016 
  

 
 

3 
 

Chair Edmunds closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Discussion followed on the concerns expressed by neighboring residents. 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP JPLN2015-0014) – Proposed 

Aloft Hotel, East side of Troy Center Drive, South of Big Beaver (PID 88-20-28-101-067), 
Section 28, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the Preliminary Site Plan application and specifically addressed 
parking. He recommended to grant Preliminary Site Plan approval with the conditions as 
identified in his report dated July 18, 2016, provided the Planning Commission is 
agreeable to the parking deviation request and shared parking. 
 
Present were James Butler, Professional Engineering Associates; Brian Colburn, Norr 
LLC; Kenny Koza, Group 10 Management; and Tony Antone, Kojoiian Companies. 
 
There was discussion on: 

 Parking; shared and number of spaces on site. 

 Hotel market study/feasibility. 

 Aloft hotel product. 

 Building materials; samples displayed. 

 PNC Building tenancy. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the 
floor was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-08-055 
Moved by: Krent 
Support by: Hutson 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a shared parking 
arrangement with the abutting property; 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Aloft Hotel, located on the east 
side of Troy Center Drive, south of Big Beaver, Section 28, within the BB (Big Beaver) 
District, be granted, subject to the following: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2016 
  

 
 

4 
 

1. Provide the shared parking agreement and location of shared parking as part of the 
final site plan. 

2. The applicant shall use clear glass for the area noted as “1st floor public space 
glazing” that is located at the canopy entrance.  

3. Submit a lighting plan in compliance with Article 13 that includes fixture details and 
photometrics. 

 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 
7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 249) – Enhanced 

Cluster Option 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the following: 

 Private vs. public roads; inter-connectivity. 

 Maximum home square footage in relation to bonus. 

 Developer feedback. 

 General comparison chart in memorandum dated August 2, 2016. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said he would add text relating to the requirement of a Public Hearing and 
make some minor clarifications to the proposed text. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Kamal Shouhayib of Choice Group addressed the value of the City’s intent to adopt an 
enhanced cluster development option. 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor for public comment. 
 
It was the consensus of the Planning Commission to schedule a Public Hearing for the 
next available Planning Commission meeting. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 

There were general Planning Commission comments. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2016 
  

 
 

5 
 

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2016 PC Minutes\Draft\2016 08 09 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



  PC 2016.09.13 
  Agenda Item # 5 

 

 
 
DATE: September 8, 2016 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 1005) – Proposed 
Renovation of Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Maple Road (1010 E. 
Maple), Section 34, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 

 
The petitioner Boggio Architects submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan application 
for a proposed restaurant with drive-thru. The project involves the renovation of and addition to a 
former Mickey Shorr commercial building.  
 
The property is currently zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) Zoning District. The 
Planning Commission is responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan approval for this item.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project. CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire. City Management supports 
the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 1005  Maple East  Sec 34\PC Memo 2016 09 13.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 1005) – Proposed Renovation of 
Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Maple Road (1010 E. Maple), Section 34, Currently 
Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-09- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed renovation project, including a restaurant with drive 
thru, located at the southeast corner of Rochester Road and Maple Road (1010 E. Maple), 
Section 34, within the IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 
 

1. Provide a bicycle rack for at least two (2) bicycles within fifty (50) feet of the building 
entrance; 

2. Provide a striped pedestrian crossing from both the Rochester Road and Maple Road 
sidewalks to the building sidewalk.  

3. Increase sidewalks fronting Rochester Road and E. Maple Road to at least eight (8) feet 
in width   

4. Extend sidewalk to the southern property boundary on Rochester Road. 
5. Provide elevations and material selection for the trash enclosure. 
6. Provide a lighting (photometric) plan, light pole details and wall mounted lighting details 

at time of final plan submission. 
7. Add additional architectural details to the south and east elevations.   

 

 ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 

 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 1005  Maple East  Sec 34\Proposed PC Resolution 09 13 2016.doc 



MAPLE EAST, 1010 E Maple

1: 550

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

46092 92Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

5/7/2015

Legend:

Aerial

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



MAPLE EAST, 1010 E Maple

1: 950

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

790158 158Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

5/7/2015

Legend:

Form Based Zoning 2

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road

(MR) Maple Road

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Aerial

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2014 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-051

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3
4
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

M
B

A
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

3
0
1
0
0
 
T

E
L
E

G
R

A
P

H
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
1
6

B
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
F

A
R

M
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
0
2
5

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

R
L
S

D
N

.
R

L
S

S
U

R
.

R
E

I
C

H
E

R
T

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

1
0

1
0

 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

APRIL 6, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-0.0

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

SCALE: 1" = 20'






ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2014 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-051

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3
4
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

M
B

A
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

3
0
1
0
0
 
T

E
L
E

G
R

A
P

H
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
1
6

B
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
F

A
R

M
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
0
2
5

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

R
L
S

D
N

.
R

L
S

S
U

R
.

R
E

I
C

H
E

R
T

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

1
0

1
0

 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

APRIL 6, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-1.0

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

SCALE: 1" = 20'



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2014 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-051

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3
4
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

M
B

A
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

3
0
1
0
0
 
T

E
L
E

G
R

A
P

H
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
1
6

B
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
F

A
R

M
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
0
2
5

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

R
L
S

D
N

.
R

L
S

S
U

R
.

R
E

I
C

H
E

R
T

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

1
0

1
0

 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

APRIL 6, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-3.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2014 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-051

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3
4
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

M
B

A
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

3
0
1
0
0
 
T

E
L
E

G
R

A
P

H
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
1
6

B
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
F

A
R

M
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
0
2
5

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

R
L
S

D
N

.
R

L
S

S
U

R
.

R
E

I
C

H
E

R
T

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

1
0

1
0

 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

APRIL 6, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-4.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2014 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-051

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3
4
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

M
B

A
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

3
0
1
0
0
 
T

E
L
E

G
R

A
P

H
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
1
6

B
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
F

A
R

M
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
0
2
5

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

R
L
S

D
N

.
R

L
S

S
U

R
.

R
E

I
C

H
E

R
T

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

1
0

1
0

 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

APRIL 6, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-9.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

 
S

H
E

E
T

SCALE: 1" = 20'



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2014 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-051

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3
4
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

M
B

A
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

3
0
1
0
0
 
T

E
L
E

G
R

A
P

H
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
1
6

B
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
F

A
R

M
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
0
2
5

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

R
L
S

D
N

.
R

L
S

S
U

R
.

R
E

I
C

H
E

R
T

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

1
0

1
0

 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

APRIL 6, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

L-1.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'

= PARKING LOT TREES

= IRRIGATED SOD  LAWN

   (CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE ALL DISTURBED

   AREAS WITH LAWN.  FIELD VERIFY LIMITS OF

   DISTURBANCE.)

= REQUIRED SHRUBS

= GREENBELT  TREES

KEY:

= EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

= TREE PROTECTION FENCE

PROPOSED REQUIRED PLANT LIST:

EXISTING TREE LIST:

=3" DIA RIVER ROCK OVER WEED

FABRIC, 4" DEPTH

= PERENNIALS (BY OWNER)

= SHRUBS (BY OWNERS)











 
 
 
 

Memo 

27725 Stansbury Boulevard, Suite 150 
Farmington Hills, MI 48334 

P: 248.536.0080 
F: 248.536.0079 

826900 MBA - Maple Road Coffee Shop FINAL Memo 6-21-16.docx  www.fveng.com 

 VIA EMAIL 

To: 
Mr. Michael A. Boggio Jr., AIA 
MBA Architects 

From: 

Michael J. Labadie, PE 
Julie M. Kroll, PE, PTOE 
Brandon Hayes, P.Eng. 
Fleis & VandenBrink 

Date: June 21, 2016 

Re: 
Proposed Coffee Shop  
City of Troy, Michigan 
Site Trip Generation and Queuing Analysis 

Introduction 

This memorandum presents the methodologies, analyses, and results of the site trip generation and queuing 
analysis for the proposed coffee shop with a drive-through in the City of Troy, Michigan.  The project site is 
located in the southeast quadrant of the Maple Road & Rochester Road intersection.  The proposed project 
includes a 1,831 SF restaurant development and site access will be provided via two existing driveways; one 
driveway on Maple Road, and one driveway on Rochester Road.  Maple Road is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) and Rochester Road is under the jurisdiction of the City of Troy.   

A site trip generation and queuing analysis has been completed to evaluate the operations of the proposed 
drive-through lane.  The scope of the study was developed based on Fleis & VandenBrink’s (F&V) knowledge 
of the study area, understanding of the development program, accepted traffic engineering practice, and 
methodologies published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE). 

Site Trip Generation Analysis 

The number of AM and PM peak hour vehicle trips that would be generated by the proposed development was 
forecast based on data published by ITE in the Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition.  The site trip generation 
forecast for the proposed development is summarized in Table 1. 

Table 1: Site Trip Generation 

                              

Land Use 
ITE 

Code Amount Units 
 Average Daily 

Traffic 
 AM Peak Hour  PM Peak Hour  

  In Out Total  In Out Total   
                              

                 

Coffee Shop w/ 
Drive-Through 937 1,831 SF  1,499  94 90 184  39 39 78   

                 
                              

 

Based on sales figures at similar coffee shops with drive-through service, up to 70% of peak hour site traffic 
may utilizes the drive-through facility during peak period.  For a conservative analysis, it was assumed that 70% 



Proposed Coffee Shop | Site Trip Generation and Queuing Analysis 
June 21, 2016 │ Page 2 of 2 

 

826900 MBA - Maple Road Coffee Shop FINAL Memo 6-21-16.docx   

of the site generated traffic would use the drive-through, resulting in 66 vehicles entering vehicles using the 
drive-through during the morning peak. 

Internal Site Circulation 

A queuing analysis was completed for the projected 66 vehicles per hour utilizing the drive-through lane.  To 
determine the vehicle service rate an average drive-through service time of 30 seconds per vehicle was 
assumed1.  The results of this analysis indicate that the drive-through will experience a 95th percentile queue 
length of four vehicles.  

Conclusions  

The conclusions of this site trip generation and queuing analysis are as follows:  

1. The proposed coffee shop drive-through will experience a 95th percentile queue length of four vehicles 
during the AM peak period. The proposed drive-through on site will provide queueing for ten vehicles; 
therefore adequate queue length is provided. 

2. The results of the analysis shows that the projected queue lengths can be adequately accommodated 
within the proposed vehicle stacking area provided.  Vehicles are not expected to extend beyond the 
limits of the site onto Rochester Road.  

Attached: Queuing Analysis 
   
   
BMH:jmk 

                                                      
1 Based on information published in ITE Journal article “A Trip Generation Study of Coffee/Donut Shops in 
Western New York”, June 2011. 



Coffee Shop w/ Drive‐Through ‐ City of Troy, MI

95th Percentile Queue Length @ Drive‐Through

 = 66 vph (Arrival rate)

 = 120 vph (Service rate)
 0.5500 (Traffic intensity)

E(n) = 1.2222 veh (Average vehicle queue in drive‐through)

E(v) = 0.0185 hr (Average time vehicles spend in the drive‐through)

= 1.1111 min

E(w) = 0.0102 hr (Average wait time from order to arrival at service window)

= 0.6111 min

P(n) = n(1‐) (Probability of exactly n  vehicles in queue)

P(n) ≥ 0.95 (n  vehicles in queue at 95 percent confidence factor)

n P(n) P(n)
0 45.0% 45.00%

1 24.8% 69.75%

2 13.6% 83.36%

3 7.5% 90.85%

4 4.1% 94.97%

5 2.3% 97.23%

6 1.2% 98.48%

7 0.7% 99.16%

8 0.4% 99.54%

9 0.2% 99.75%

10 0.1% 99.86%

11 0.1% 99.92%


	Preliminary Site Plan Civil.pdf
	(C-0_0) COVER-15051-C-0_0
	(C-1_0) TOPO-15051-C-1_0
	(C-3_0) SITE-15051-C-3_0
	(C-4_0) GRADE-15051-C-4_0
	(C-9_0) DETAIL-15051-C-9_0
	(L-1_0) LANDSCAPE PLAN-15051-L-1_0

	Applicant Memorandum 2016 06 21.pdf
	Introduction
	Site Trip Generation Analysis
	Table 1: Site Trip Generation

	Internal Site Circulation
	Conclusions
	MBA - Maple Road Coffee Shop DRAFT Memo 5-12-16.pdf
	Introduction
	Site Trip Generation Analysis
	Table 1: Site Trip Generation

	Internal Site Circulation
	Conclusions





